
Approved 12.7.05 

ART WORK SUB-COMMITTEE 
McHenry County Administration Building  

667 Ware Road 
Woodstock IL 60098 

MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 4, 2005 
The meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Gilman at 10:37 a.m.   The following members were present: 
Ann Gilman; Tina Hill; Virginia Peschke; Pete Merkel and Rick Klasen.  Also in attendance: John Hadley, Building 
Operations; Ann Kate, County Board Member; Sue Stelford and Peter Benkendorf, Art Coordinators; Don Rose, President 
of the NW Area Arts Council; Jon Stout, Artist; and the press. 
 
                    Ann Gilman. Chairman 

Tina Hill  Rick Klasen   
Pete Merkel  Virginia Peschke 
 

MINUTES   
Committee members viewed the minutes of October 26, 2005.  Ms. Hill made a motion, seconded by Mr. Klasen to 
approve the minutes of October 26, 2005 as presented.  The motion carried with all members present voting aye.  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION    
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Art for the Government Center – continued discussion: Ms. Stelford joined committee members and introduced Mr. John 
Stout, a McHenry County artist.  Mr. Stout recently had an art show at the Woodstock Opera House where Ms. Stelford 
viewed his art.  After the show, Ms. Stelford contacted Mr. Stout regarding the County obtaining a piece of his artwork.  
Ms. Stelford informed the committee members that Mr. Stout has donated a piece of his artwork to the County.  He stated 
he picked this piece of his artwork for donation because he liked the vibrancy of color this piece had.  A portfolio of his 
work was passed around to committee members.  He stated he has never received any formal training for his artwork, 
though he has taken some classes.  The name of the donated piece is “Just for you” and signifies a boutonniere and 
corsage.    He stated he strives to call attention to nature and his purpose in art is threefold.  1) See people appreciate art 
2) provide education for art and 3) see people participate in the arts.  Committee members were informed that a press 
announcement would be made regarding the donation to the County.    Mr. Stout informed committee members that he 
has additional artwork available.  He stated it is important to preserve the look of the County.  The land in the County is 
disappearing rapidly and we can make up for the lost land by preserving the look through artwork.  Committee members 
thanked Mr. Stout for his generous donation and for taking the lead of the Counties artwork program. 
 
Mr. Hadley informed committee members that the artwork has been removed from the Government Center and has been 
placed in storage in the IT Department (room 204) of the Administration Building.  He stated that the placement of the 
artwork would be up to the Artwork Coordinators and the Artwork Sub-Committee.   
 
Mr. Hadley informed committee members that bids went out for the various hanging systems for the artwork.  The various 
systems were reviewed by committee members.  It was noted that for the permanent placement of artwork, nails could be 
used.  Committee members directed Mr. Hadley to work with Ms. Stelford and Mr. Bendendorf to figure out the best 
systems to purchase.  It was stated that the pedestals were quite pricey and small tables made be needed as an 
alternative.  Committee members stated that at least three display panels will be needed to start for the student shows 
and additional purchases may be needed at a later date.  It was noted that brass plates will be needed for each piece of 
art.  This will designate what the name of the artwork is and who the artist is.  It was stated that some brass plates will be 
needed for the old artwork as well.  
 
Discussion continued regarding the mural for the Administration Building Lunchroom.  It was suggested that a student 
mural competition be held, with students submitting a design for consideration.  It was noted that a design prospectus is 
needed to see what makes the most sense for the mural.  Committee members stated that the mural should be evocative 
of McHenry County and should be included in the prospectus.   
 
Committee members were previously directed to come up with some positive criteria.  It was noted that the previous 
criteria was vague and consisted of what isn’t wanted and we need to be more explicit of what is wanted.  Chairman 
Gilman stated that instead of having negative criteria we should concentrate on positive criteria.  She stated that instead 
of No Religious Subjects, No Political Statements and No Explicit Sexual Subject we should say that Religious, Political 



Approved 12.7.05 

and Explicit Sexual Subjects are subject to strict interpretation.  Additional criteria suggested was that the artwork must be 
by a McHenry County resident, accept all media and encourage diversity of the subject matter and mediums.    
ARTWORK SUB-COMMITTEE 
November 4, 2005 
Page 2 
 
Committee members recommended Ms. Stelford and Mr. Pendergrast be very selective of who to request donations from 
as we want a quality program.  It was suggested that the calendar of events be posted by quarter.  Committee members 
noted the need to include Department Heads in the artwork events and suggested Mr. Austin bring this forward during a 
department head meeting.  It was stated that the place for each event could change as well, between the Administration 
Building, the Courthouse, Valley Hi and Transportation.  Committee members reviewed a possible calendar of events.  It 
was suggested that instead of the word “lecture” to use presentation.  Committee members questioned whether having 
Friday events would go over well as employees tended to leave early on Fridays.  It was suggested that these events take 
place during or around the County Board meeting dates as that would bring individuals other than employees to these 
events.  It was suggested that the mural project be added to the calendar with a winner of the project announced by 
November.  It was suggested that Mr. Ray Mathis be contacted regarding his photos of McHenry County be included in 
the event to take place in January.  Committee members requested the Artwork Coordinators create a proposed budget 
for the suggested calendar of events.  Committee members were questioned regarding requests to receive a tax write-off 
for donations and noted this would have to be though a 501c3 corporation.  It was suggested that the McHenry County 
Community Foundation be used as a conduit for these donations and individuals can requests these donations go to 
McHenry County.  Ms. Stelford questioned whether a small stipend could be paid to the presenters for their time.  
Committee members stated that a budget for these events would be needed and this could be included in said budget.  
Mr. Labaj joined committee members to answer questions regarding the coverage for artwork in the buildings.  He stated 
that the county currently has $10,000 worth of coverage for artwork in the building, and additional coverage can be 
obtained as needed.  He stated he would speak to the insurer regarding this issue.  Committee members questioned 
whether the events would be covered.  Mr. Labaj stated he would check into this for the committee members.  Mr. Labaj 
requested a schedule of events so he could notify the insurance carrier in case additional coverage is needed for the 
events.   
 
Committee members suggested the next meeting date scheduled for December 7th at 8:30a.m. 
 
The committee received the first quarter billing for the Art Coordinators.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION   
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
Noting no further business, Ms. Hill made a motion, seconded by Mr. Klasen, to adjourn the meeting at 12:03 p.m.  The 
motion carried with a unanimous voice vote. 
 
:ksf 


